BANK OF WESTMINSTER
249-51 EAST MAIN STREET

The building now occupying lot 12 of the original town of
Westminster has, according to local authorities, stood there "always".
Regardless of how one defines "always", this idea is important as it
reveals the regard in which the lTow fieldstone foundation pile is held.
Laid in Flemish Bond brick, 5 bays wide, and 2% stories tall, the old
Bank of Westminster building has, despite unfortunate modern additions,
preserved the dignity of an early 19th century commercial building on
its Main Street facade. This dianity is created in large part by a
finesse of its architecture - with superbly pedimented door surround,
north pedimented gable, crisp Flemish Bond, cornice east and west gable
ends are all examples of an academicism rare in the City, and unexcelled
here in execution. The roots of the building go back to the war of 1812.
When the British, under General Ross, threatened Baltimore in 1814, most
of that City's bankers became nervous and fled to the countryside with
whatever monies they could carry. Baltimore's Commercial and Farmer's
Bank sent John Yalsh to Yestminster with a large amount of spnecie, and,
while in Westminster, he opened a small office of Discount and Deposit.
After the war was over, and Baltimore was still intact, most bankers
returned, but !lalsh stayed in Westminster and incorporated, in 1816, the
bank of Westminster. The Bank purchased lots 12 and 13 of the original
town on June 12, 1818, and then erected the original sections of the pre-
sent building, as the first bank between Frederick, Baltimore, and
Pennsylvania.

« .

3



- -~

g Y

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST o70150451%

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC

Bank of Westminster

AND/OR COMMON
Mutual Fire Insurance Company of Carroll County

BEALOCATION
) STREET & NUMBER
249-51 East Main Street (MD 32) 6
CITY. TOWN . CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Westminster  VICINITY OF Carroll
STATE COUNTY
Maryland
[EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT _.PUBLIC X _OCCUPIED —AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
XBUILDINGIS) X _PRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED X_COMMERCIAL __.PARK
~  _STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL  X_PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
— OBJECT —INPROCESS X _YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED X YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
—-NO —MILITARY __OTHER
EJOWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME
Mutual Fire Insurance Company of Carroll County Telephone ik
STREET & NUMBER

249 East Main Street

CITY. TOWN : STATE, Zilp code
Westminster ___ VICINITY OF Maryland 21157
JHILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: 62

COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 130
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC. Carroll County Office Building

STREET & NUMBER

Center Street

— s Westmingter Marvland
n REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

Westminster Bicentennial

DATE
October, 1964 —FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY 3LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR

SURVEY RECORDS Carroll County Historical Society

CITY. TOWN . STATE
Westminster Maryland




CLEf-i3 0

DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
__GOO0D __RUINS XaLTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The building now occupying lot 12 of the original town of
Westminster has, according to local authorities, stood there "always".
Regardless of how one defines "always", this idea is important as it
reveals the regard with which the low fieldstone foundationed pile is
held. Laid in Flemish Bond, 5 bays wide and 2% stories tall, the old
Bank of Westminster building has, despite an unfortunate modern addi-
tion, preserved the dignity of an early 19th century commercial building
on its Main Street facade. It is located on the north side of East Main
Street, Maryland Route 32, about 60 feet west of Church Street.

Originally, the building served 2 uses (as it still does); the
western section being intended for commercial activity, with the eastern
half providing a residence (originally for the bank's teller). These
dual functions explain the 2 ground floor entrances - that for the bank
is unique in Westminster - a wooden pedimented, twin columned arrangement
of a perfect Roman Doric order (complete with guttae) which surrounds and
covers a wood double door with a single light transom. The door accordi=ng
to an employee, "has its original bevelled glass." Two broad granite : s
lead to the door which is the second bay from the West. Immediately to thk~
east is the door to the apartment. This door, although very finely execu .,
is, above its 2 brick steps, a bit more standard; a full denticulated cornice
is supported by rosetted brackets, all of which covers a transomed double
door. Each door has 12 small panes. The remaining 3 ground floor bays are
double-hung sash windows, with each sash having a single large pane. Win-
dows on the second floor are also 1/1. All windows have 3 course gauged
flat arches and white wooden sills. Three pedimented - gable dormer win-
dows pierce the slate roof in a random fashion. A narrow, but full cornice
finishes the eaves. One corbell capred chimney rises at either gable end.

The 5 course common bond east end continues the cornice under its
gable. The 1/1 window is the second floor rear bay, and it has the same
arch sill, and shutter features already described. The 4 course common
bond west facade is identical, except that it has 2 regularly placed 6/6
windows with simple enframement on its second floor. Extending to the
northwest is a 1 story 3-bay-long original ell, now, unfortunately, hidden
by the recent addition that also covers the ground floor of the western
Main Street. The Main Street section's north front today has two 6/6
windows with 4 course gauged flat arches on its second story. These win-
dows flank the ell's pedimented roof, which is now painted Tuscan red,
and is complete with modillions. The ell's north wall, laid in 5 course
common bond, has 2 regularly placed 1/1 windows with thick granite sills
and 4 course gauged flat arches which have large brick keystones.

Later, c. 1830, a 2 story extension was built off the north wa..

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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) SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —.COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION
—-1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS —_LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
~—1800-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —.MILITARY _)%OCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—-1700-1799 _ART _ENGINEERING —MuUSsIC __THEATER
X 1800-1899 XCOMMERCE X _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —.COMMUNICATIONS —_INDUSTRY —_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

—INVENTION

.SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

c. 1820
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of 249 and 251 East Main Street is many faceted.
The fineness of its architecture - the superb pedimented door, the north
pedimented gable, the crisp Flemish Bond, the corniced east and west gable
ends are all examples of academicism rare in the City, and unexcelled in
its execution. Westminster possesses very few classically detailed high
style buildings; if it had more, a feeling of excessive bookishness might
set in, but, as it is, such politeness is a pleasant rarity. It is also
interesting to see how the "classic"” 5 bay - 2 story L-shape farmhouse can
so easily incorporate both academic details and commercial functions and
yet not lose its integrity.

However, the building is certainly equally important in the social
and commercial histories of Westminster, indeed of all of north central
Maryland. When the British, under General Ross, threatened Baltimore in
1814, most of the City's bankers became nervous and fled to the country
with whatever gold, silver, and paper they could carry. Baltimore's
Commércial and Farmer's Bank sent John Walsh to Westminster with a large
amount of specie, and, while in Westminster, he opened a small office of
"Discount and Deposit"”. After the war was over, and Baltimore was still in
tact, most bankers returned to the City, but Walsh stayed in Westminster
and incorporated, in 1816, the Bank of Westminster. The Bank, as a body
corporate, purchased lots 12 and 13 of the original town on June 12, 1818
(Frederick County Deed Book JS, Number 6, page 592), and then erected the
original sections of the present buildings, the first bank between Frederick,
Baltimore, and Pennsylvania.

The bank was along the route wheat farmers took between Western
Pennsylvania and the warehouses of Baltimore. Each bank turned out its
own paper money in these days (the Carroll County Historical Commission has
some of the original engraving plates), and it was to the Bank's advantage
to have its bills travel as far from home as possible. So, to induce
thirsty farmers to cash their checks at the Westminster Bank for its paper,
the bank kept a barrel of Maryland Rye on tap in the board room, and offered
its customers complimentary drinks (American Sentinel, Auqust 1913). (How
we have fallen now, with our lollipops and matches).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

"One Hundredth Anniversary of the Founding of the Mutual Fire
Insurance Company of Carroll County", Westminster, 1969.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

[IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY ___‘{ - City Lot

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Being all of lot 21 as shown on the original plat of Westminster
recorded among the Land Records of Frederick County in Book L, page 472.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

[B1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Christopher Weeks, Consultant October, 1974
ORGANIZATION DATE
Westminster Historical Sites Survey
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
c/o City Hall - Public Works Department
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Westmingter Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Mr. Jacob Reese, an early cashier, lived in the apartment, the
diary of Katharine Jones Shellman tells us, between 1822-1832. 1In early
days, Isaac Shriver was president, and ordered the old vault, which still
functions in its original location.

In 1865 the Bank was re-incorporated as a national bank, under
the standards of the National Bank Act, as the Union National Bank, a
celebrant choice of words for 1865. (Baltimore Sun, Sunday April 16, 1961.)
Checks issued by both banks were remarkably attractive, copies are attached
to this report.

Meanwhile, Agustus Shriver and Edward Lynch were organizing the
Mutual Fire Insurance Company, which was incorporated in 1869, and issued
its first policy to one Francis Penn on March 21, 1870. Jfishua Hering was
president from 1872-1913, and was also cashier for the Bank. He purchased
lot 12 and the building in 1874 (Deed 43/408), and then sold it to his
insurance company 1l years later, on February 24, 1885, for a tidy profit
(62/130). Hering, once president of the General Conference of the Methodist
Church "the highest position in the church and the first layman ever to hold
this position" (One Hundredth Anniversary of the Insurance Company pamphlet,
p. 7), displayed an interesting business ethic.

The property has not changed hands since that time.
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of the apartment side to a depth equal to that of the original ell. The
tin roof of this section has simple eaves. The extension's 4 reqularly
placed (2 per floor) 6/6 windows have little enframement above their white
wooden sills, and below their 3 course gauged flat arches. A large cor-
belled chimney is flush with the north 4 course common bond wall. The
west front of this extension originally had a 2-tiered wooden porch with
square posts and railings. On the second story of this porch is a 6/6 4
course gauged flat arch window to the north, and a panel door to the south.

The rest of the porch, and the space between the 2 northern
wings, were all filled in by a red clapboard addition dating "from the
mid 1950's", according to its present tenants (who did not live there then).
At the same time, a 1 story red clapboard gable roofed extension was built
to the north, giving, for the first time, the eastern residential wing a
greater depth than the older commercial west wing. (No mention will he
made of possible symbolism.) The west side of this addition has one 6/6
simply enframed window to the north, and a plain panelled door to the south;
the east front has one 6/6 window opposite the west's door. In the gable
(north) end, a set of 8 - light French Doors leads to a screened shed roofed
porch.

In 1972, the building suffered its worst blow when a one story
5 course common bond extension was built off the west of the original bank
section. This section has 2 large bow-front windows on the street (south)
side, with white wooden letters strung out across the front spelling out
the builder's name. The building was also devastatingly sand-blasted at
that time.
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